
 

Overview & Scrutiny scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Culture, Tourism & Enterprise Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee Ad-Hoc Panel 

Date: 10 June 2009 

Time: 10.00am 

Venue Learning Centre, Jubilee Library 

Members: Councillors: 
Randall (Chairman), Davis and Harmer-Strange 

Contact: Julia Riches/Karen Amsden 
 
 
Julia.riches@brighton-
hove.gov.uk/karen.amsden@brighton-
hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AD-HOC 
PANEL 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

16. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 1 - 2 

 

17. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

 Draft minutes from the last meeting on 13 May 2009. 

3 - 14 

 

18. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

19. EVIDENCE FROM WITNESSES 

 The panel will hear from: 
 
Graham Tubb, Head of Energy Policy, SEEDA 
Christine D’Cruz, Director of Business Development - Residential and 
SME Markets, EDF Energy 
Maria Antoniou, Development Manager, Friends Centre 
Martin Grimshaw, Transition Brighton and Hove 
Vernice Halligan, Head of Employer Engagement & Michael Buckman, 
Curriculum Manager, City College Brighton and Hove  
Steve Charter, Director, SC2 Sustainability Consultancy 
 

15 - 18 

 

20. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

 Written evidence provided by David Porter of EnviroBusiness):  
ETS Market Growth Forecasts for South East (see attached copy),  

19 - 20 

 

 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact 
Karen.amsden@brighton-hove.gov.uk/julia.riches@brighton-hove.gov.uk or email 
scrutiny@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
 
 

 



CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AD-HOC 
PANEL 

Date of Publication – 03.06.09 

 

 

 





       Agenda Item 16 
 
 
To consider the following Procedural Business: 
 
A. Declaration of Substitutes 
 
 No substitutes are permitted on ad hoc scrutiny panels. 
 
 
B. Declarations of Interest 
 
 (1) To seek declarations of any personal or personal & prejudicial 

interests under Part 2 of the Code of Conduct for Members in 
relation to matters on the Agenda.  Members who do declare such 
interests are required to clearly describe the nature of the interest.   

  
 (2) A Member of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission, an 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee or a Select Committee has a 
prejudicial interest in any business at a meeting of that Committee 
where –  
(a) that business relates to a decision made (whether 
implemented or not) or action taken by the Executive or another 
of the Council’s committees, sub-committees, joint committees or 
joint sub-committees; and 
(b) at the time the decision was made or action was taken the 
Member was  
 (i) a Member of the Executive or that committee, sub-committee, 
joint committee or joint sub-committee and  
 (ii) was present when the decision was made or action taken. 

 
 (3) If the interest is a prejudicial interest, the Code requires the 

Member concerned:  
(a) to leave the room or chamber where the meeting takes place 

while the item in respect of which the declaration is made is 
under consideration. [There are three exceptions to this rule 
which are set out at paragraph (4) below]. 

(b) not to exercise executive functions in relation to that business 
and  

(c) not to seek improperly to influence a decision about that 
business. 

 
(4) The circumstances in which a Member who has declared a 
prejudicial interest is permitted to remain while the item in respect 
of which the interest has been declared is under consideration 
are: 
(a) for the purpose of making representations, answering 

questions or giving evidence relating to the item, provided that 
the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the same 
purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise, BUT the 

1



Member must leave immediately after he/she has made the 
representations, answered the questions, or given the 
evidence; 

(b) if the Member has obtained a dispensation from the Standards 
Committee; or 

(c) if the Member is the Leader or a Cabinet Member and has 
been required to attend before an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or Sub-Committee to answer questions. 

 
C. Declaration of Party Whip 
 

To seek declarations of the existence and nature of any party whip in 
relation to any matter on the Agenda as set out at paragraph 8 of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Ways of Working. 

 
D. Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

To consider whether, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted, or the nature of the proceedings, the press and public 
should be excluded from the meeting when any of the following items 
are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the 
report is confidential and therefore not available to the public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 
 
 

 

2



  Agenda Item 17 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AD-HOC 
PANEL 

 
10.00am 13 MAY 2009 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1, HOVE TOWN HALL 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
Present: Councillor Randall (Chairman) 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor Harmer-Strange, Councillor Melanie Davis 
 
Others present: Thurstan Crockett, Head of Sustainability, Paula Murray, Head of Culture & 
Economy, Julia Riches, Scrutiny Officer and Karen Amsden, Scrutiny Officer. 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

11. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
11a Declarations of Interest 
 
11.1 There were none 
 
11b Exclusion of press and public 
 
11.2 In accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, it was considered 
whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting  during the consideration of 
any items contained in the agenda, having regard to the nature of the business to be 
transacted and the nature of the proceedings and the likelihood as to whether, if the members 
of the press and public were present, there would be disclosure to them of confidential or 
exempt information as defined in section 100I of the said Act. 
 
11.3 RESOLVED – that the press and public be not excluded from the meeting 
 
12. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
 
12.1 The minutes were agreed. 
 
13. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
13. There were none. 
 
14. EVIDENCE FROM WITNESSES 
 

3



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AD-HOC PANEL 

13 MAY 2009 

14a Chairman’s introduction 
 
Cllr Randall opened the session by describing the first session as inspirational. The second 
session covered nuts and bolts issues and specific things that the council could do and he 
anticipated that this session would be the same.  
 
14b Pooran Desai, Sustainability director of BioRegional Quintain Ltd  
 
Mr Desai explained that BioRegional Quintain is part owned by a charity and has an enterprise-
led approach to sustainability. They employed 50 people in across the associated 
organisations, and are involved in activities including forestry, recycling and property 
development. Companies they have worked with include Tesco and B&Q.  
 
The charity arm was focussed on creating a sustainable future and called ‘one planet living’.  
This was because if everyone consumed as much as the average person in the UK currently, 
then we would need 3 planets. As Greenpeace have stated 
 
‘If you are not terrified, you do not understand’. 
 
It was necessary to come out of the recession, clean and green. In the UK only 10% of the 
stimulus packages are directed towards green industries, compared to 80% in Korea. 
Regardless of environmental drivers, renewable energy was needed as oil prices reached a 
peak last year.  
 
Mr Desai believed that everything needed to be re-invented in a green way. For example the 
materials used in construction, such as the greenest concrete being used by One Brighton.  
Another example was in renewable energy, where they were working with SeaRoc on offshore 
wind farm proposals. The largest wind farm in the work has just been agreed, which would 
bring significant investment into the Thames Gateway.  
 
His organisation has engaged Green Mop - a Brighton and Hove (B&H) business - to clean 
their flats in a green way, which included travelling on bikes and using environmentally sound 
cleaning products.     
 
Mr Desai thought a lot of places were assessing how to become a home to a green cluster. 
However, it was not just a case of wanting to do it. Any location needed to offer a good lifestyle 
and intellectual capital, as well as the will and appropriate policies.  He felt that Brighton and 
Hove (for which a huge opportunity existed) and Cambridge (who were pushing ahead) were 
the only places in the UK that could meet these requirements. Therefore Brighton and Hove 
(B&H) could be a key cluster due to its academic and lifestyle opportunities and there would be 
a massive growth of this sector in the next 20 years.  
 
He believed that you need fully rounded policies to achieve a sustainable lifestyle. He was 
working with a community group in London Road (in B&H) to come up with an alternative to a 
new Tesco and its resulting parking spaces. Instead you could have a ‘One Planet’ type 
quarter there – a green life style place - which housed the new industries of the future.   
 
 
 
 

4



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AD-HOC PANEL 

13 MAY 2009 

Cllr Randall – do you think that the Thames Gateway experience could be replicated in 
Brighton? Could you also tell us more about SeaRoc and the implications for Brighton? 
 
SeaRoc are a leading marine engineering company. The Crown Estates are releasing areas of 
sea. They are linking up with SeaRoc and a German company to develop a project that could 
produce 1 gigawatt of power which could be enough for East and West Sussex. Forty percent 
of the UK’s electricity needs could be met by wind, and along with tidal, and be the energy of 
the future. Therefore coastal locations were very important.  
 
A lot of technological developments are needed for wind turbines including engineering and 
design. Mr Desai suspects that B&H might not be the right place for manufacturing turbines, 
but there is potential for Southampton and Shoreham Harbour. He suggested that the Panel 
should talk to SeaRoc about the jobs potential. He feels that a lot of computer based jobs could 
be situated in B&H. One example is the greener concrete developed for One Brighton, that 
could then be used to construct wind farms. Similarly, knowledge based jobs could be sited in 
B&H. He believes that higher paid engineers and creative workers would prefer to be based in 
B&H, rather than Southampton. 
 
Thurstan Crockett then told the Panel that SeaRoc had grown in five years from 5 to (30/35) 
employees.  They have become a world leader in marine renewables. Although their location in 
B&H was by accident, people like to live here and would not now move from the City. The 
Council had recently helped them to find larger offices.    
 
Mr Desai asked the panel if B&H could position itself as the centre of marine sustainability. The 
Brighton brand could be a good attractor.  
 
Cllr Randall – what one thing would you ask Brighton and Hove City Council (BHCC) to do? 
 
There is the opportunity to create a vision for the future of B&H – which entails deciding what 
the City would be in 2050 and aligning all its polices. This would not just involve the green 
economic future, but include areas such as transport and improving the quality of life to attract 
the brightest brains. The City has to become what it wants to be, and  
 
‘dress for the person you want to be, not what you are’.    
  
The City would have to behave as though it was the centre for renewables. He suggested that 
B&H assess where they wanted to be both in 2020 and 2050.  
 
Cllr Davis – it is very important that we address how we can attract big projects. What do you 
think we should be doing now to encourage growth? 
 
Now is the time to prepare. While things are difficult in the economy, businesses would choose 
to locate in B&H, One example is New England House (NEH) which has spawned businesses. 
It is the vision that attracts people and that is what works. To create a green cluster you need: 
 

• Low cost incubator units 

• Link to a quarter, where this was a geographical concentration - a lot can happen 
through informal links 

• Light industrial units as part of a mixed use development, situated in town where people 
live and work, rather than an out of town industrial park 

5



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AD-HOC PANEL 

13 MAY 2009 

 
The conditions, as outlined above, then create a vibe. London Road could be a natural area for 
such a hub, with a mixture of green businesses and green living. An environmentally sound 
makeover could be given to NEH, involving local business and green lifestyles. This could 
include car clubs and retro fittings on the buildings.  
 
Cllr Harmer-Strange – Other than Cambridge, do we have any competitors? 
 

• Cambridge – due to the Universities 

• Cardiff – as the Welsh Assembley has adopted stretching targets e.g. zero carbon 
homes and biomass targets. There is a lot of European funding for green technology 
directed to these areas.  

• London and the Thames Gateway. However, this is not a natural cluster as it would be 
hard to sell a lifestyle in parts of North Kent  

 
It is often forgotten that you have to offer a high quality of life to create a cluster. No other city 
had the same opportunity as B&H, but it needs real commitment.  
 
Cllr Randall – You are working on a large scheme in Middlesbrough. Is it a mixed 
development? 
 
It contains housing, businesses, hotels and is becoming a centre for hydrogen technologies. It 
is becoming a regional centre, rather than national, as it is not a lifestyle attractor. They would 
only undertake mixed developments, as this meant: 
 

• Efficient use of energy 

• More efficient use of services e.g. car clubs 

• Reduced crime due to natural policing 
 
Cllr Harmer-Strange – what were the differences between wind and marine technologies. 
Which will be the biggest? 
 
Wind will be massive, then tidal - which will be bigger than waves because it is more 
predictable. Wind is going ahead now, but tidal technologies need more development and 
there were more ecological issues. In summary: 
 

• Wind – now in companies like SeaRoc 

• Tidal – worth starting now and could be ready in 5-10 years time 

• Algae (for biofuels) again could be ready in 5-10 years time 
     
Thurstan Crockett then commented about the recent wind turbine plant that had shut down in 
the Isle of Wight, citing planning applications as the biggest problem. He felt that it was a 
shame that the company had not been able to hold out. 
 
14c. David Porter, Environmental Enterprise Manager, Envirobusiness  
 
Mr Porter told the Panel that he began working in this area with SETsquared, a business 
acceleration partnership between universities. EnviroBusiness was a not for profit company set 
up by SEEDA three years ago.  
 

6



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AD-HOC PANEL 

13 MAY 2009 

The intention was to use sector consortia, to push forward strategic industries that SEEDA 
think are interesting and important to the region e.g. aerospace and digital media. 
EnviroBusiness was the sector consortia for the environment, and one of its aims had been to 
create a network of early stage companies e.g. water, waste, energy and environmental 
monitoring. There was now a network of 700 companies, who were often at an early stage and 
either looking to prove that their product worked, increase sales or sell overseas. This was 
initially a two year project, which had been extended to 2011, with a focus on global 
competitiveness.  
 
EnviroBusiness were partially co-ordinating and delivering a £2.4m programme, which had six 
streams: 
 

1. market intelligence provision: for organisations who moved into the sector and did 
not know information such as market value chains. For industries, such as 
manufacturing wind turbines, there are a lot of new skills that need to be 
developed, or built up, from existing knowledge.   

2. international sales: it was a big step for organisations who are just selling in the 
UK, to then enter the global market. This is sub-contracted to PIRA Consulting, 
who has used its world wide network to make contacts.  

3. business support:  there were a lot of schemes out there that could help 
businesses. However organisations did not know which were appropriate and how 
to access them. He suggested that this was an area where BHCC could offer 
support.   

4. creating demand: his experience was gained from past work with the Thames 
Gateway project to develop a sustainable industrial park. They had to address 
issues such as what renewable power do they use? Who would deliver this? 
These decisions would create demand. Local authorities had a large role in this, 
from reducing their own carbon footprint to identifying projects such as insulating 
homes.  

5. international innovation: this involved helping organisations to link with overseas 
partners.   

6. development of wind and marine renewable supply chain: Denmark had been 
successful in this area because it had good policies and was a windy country. The 
shipping expertise of areas such as Southampton, Newhaven and Shoreham 
Harbour could be good for this region. The United Kingdom had a lot of offshore 
skills and knowledge and could make the South Coast, for example, a global 
winner. This would help the development of supply chains. The focus of 
EnviroBusiness was on implementation, rather than policy.   

 
The proposed South East Environmental Innovation Network was aimed at bringing 
universities, Small and Medium enterprises (SMEs) and large companies together. One 
example was Ricardo who recognised that they could enter the renewable energy market, e.g. 
wind turbines, but recognised that they could not do this alone and wanted to interface with 
universities and SMEs with relevant expertise. A lot of other companies could move into 
environmental work and this Network could help them secure European Union funding. The bid 
for funding this Network was likely to be completed by June.  
 
 

7



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AD-HOC PANEL 

13 MAY 2009 

Cllr Randall – It is vital to talk about existing businesses who want to switch to environmental 
industries e.g. from manufacturing cars. What is the potential for change and what are you 
doing with existing organisations? 
 
Market research has found that the growth of renewable energy will be in double figures in the 
next ten years. The growth of the waste industry will not be as significant, except anaerobic 
digestion. Offshore wind is going to be the big thing for the next ten years and there will be real 
growth opportunities.  
 
Action: Karen Amsden/Julia Riches have obtained the breakdown of figures David 
Porter offered to provide about the growth opportunities of renewable energies.      
 
Each company has different needs from obtaining funding to selling overseas. Therefore you 
have to pick winners and some will never work, either due to the business idea or the people 
running the company. The idea is to pick the top 500 companies and work with them to realise 
what they need and create packages for them (using the £2.4m funding).  For example they 
had met with a company who wants to convert petrol cars to electric, by stripping out their 
insides. There were likely to be significant engineering issues, so they needed to work with a 
university rather than going straight to the market. In the process they may find out that it was 
not a good idea.  
 
Cllr Randall – is enough being done to inform existing organisations about the potential of 
switching to environmental industries? 
 
We are working with the Engineers Federation. One could say that in 50 years all companies 
will need to produce environmentally sustainable products, rather then there being an 
environmental industries section. A key part of environmental solutions will be I.T. related and 
B&H has a very strong digital sector.  
 
Cllr Harmer-Strange – do you work with Business Link? 
 
We do work with a sustainable business advisor in Business Link and closely with Business 
Link Kent. The aim is to have a single point of contact. EnviroBusiness also wish to work with 
the Innovation and Growth Teams (IGTs), including Nigel Biggs who is running the Thames 
Gateway IGT. 
 
Cllr Harmer-Strange – do you share the same vision as Pooran Desai? 
 
Yes, there are great transport links to London. A lot of expertise is sucked into London, which 
could be redeployed into renewable industries in Brighton. For example, those who are 
currently working in engineering and finance.     
  
There is a coastal strip in East Sussex that has already created a green cluster, from Hastings 
to Southampton. It would be possible to have a joined up initiative, but the transport links are 
poor. Case studies are a great way of driving clusters. For example both Seattle, with the 
success of Microsoft, as well as Silicon Valley. Here SeaRoc could be used by BHCC as a 
tangible example of success.   The digital media cluster came about partially due to the 
Universities in B&H. 
 
 

8



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AD-HOC PANEL 

13 MAY 2009 

Thurstan Crockett – how many of your top 500 companies are here? 
 
We have identified over 400 high priority organisations (from 700). Contact has been made 
with 50 of them and we will be holding a large event in June for another 50 companies. This is 
the start of the programme and we are not aware of all the activity that is going on. When 
talking to Jim Christy, we have realised that we have not heard of half the organisations who 
are working with the East Sussex Enterprise Hub. 
 
Thurstan Crockett – In relation to the Network, what can BHCC do to maximise the 
opportunities? 
 
The Council is sitting at the end of a supply chain and should define what it wants to happen in 
its city. It could then go to the Network and ask for environmental organisations to deliver 
cutting edge technologies and solutions. This could be a key stepping stone in enabling 
businesses to demonstrate their products and provide case studies. One example is fitting a 
single street with solar panels. Then when something worked, it could be rolled out across the 
city. Would it be possible to include BHCC in the bid for the Network? 
 
Action: BHCC to respond to the request from David Porter for support from BHCC in 
their bid to establish the South East Environmental Innovation Network  
 
Cllr Davis – the idea of picking winners is tricky, as we need to be seen to be fair. Although 
case studies are OK.  
 
Cllr Harmer-Strange – who knows where all the funding is for this? Where is the centre of 
excellence of funding knowledge?  
 
Finance South East has produced a list of funding opportunities for SMEs. EnviroBusiness 
were also contracted to produce a directory of funding opportunities for environmental 
industries.  
 
Jim Christy – it is also about knowing how to apply for funding. Expert help is needed because 
there are so many different agencies, rules and procedures. 
 
The Chairman then thanked David Porter for having highlighted the regional aspect of this 
issue and the opportunities of the coastal strip. 
 
14.d Jim Christy, Director, East Sussex Enterprise Hub 
 
Mr Christy explained that the Hub had been set up by SEEDA and covered B&H and East 
Sussex. There were 20 Hubs aimed at filling the gaps in helping new technologies get to 
market, including making links with universities and applying for patents. In 2005 Sea Space 
applied to have an Enterprise Hub in Hastings, but SEEDA were reluctant as they felt there 
was insufficient enterprise in the coastal strip. The Hub now had 67 portfolio clients with 
national and international growth potential. They also had a network of 850 members who 
come to them for general advice and are referred to organisations such as  Envirowise, 
Business Link and the Universities.  
 
He used the following examples of organisations who have been helped by the Hub: 
 

9



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AD-HOC PANEL 

13 MAY 2009 

• EVRS - have designed a new method of recycling organic waste which turns it into 
cellulose. Following a meeting arranged by the Hub, an investor has decided to put 
£600,000 into this project.   

• South East Health - used IT to carry out remote telehealth monitoring, which was an 
increasingly important area of their business. This had environmental benefits such as 
reduced car use and care in the home rather than increased demand on hospitals.  

• Tiger Enterprise Ltd - a Brighton based organisation which collected re-usable materials 
from building sites. Their Managing Director, Daniel Hill, should be seen as a role 
model. This company struggled for funding and could not find a good site to relocate to. 
The Hub helped with business planning, marketing, sourcing the right contacts and 
helped them secure funding. They had now won a contact across the South East. 

• Dataslide - had developed an oscillating replacement to the hard drive, to greatly 
improve the storage capacity and speed. Although this is a step change technology with 
international potential, they have found it very difficult to persuade others of the massive 
potential of the project, although if the project was to succeed it would result in a great 
number of highly qualified jobs. The business was based in Hastings and had a 
business facility in Newhaven, but could be situated anywhere along the coast or indeed 
across the UK/Europe.  

• Solar UK - employed 33 people who had dismantled a building facility in Coventry and 
have been reconstructing a 17 sided environmentally advanced building in Battle. This 
company was expected to grow to about 200 employees in the next few years.  

• Enviro21 - a project taken on by Sea Space to build a linked Environmental and 
Innovation Campus. It would house 7 different business units with the latest 
environmental technologies incorporated, at approximately 10,000 sq ft each. It would 
be a mixture of office and manufacturing space and offer an innovation exchange to 
showcase enviro technologies alongside conference, restaurant and other facilities. A 
potential bid was being discussed with EnviroBusiness. Three of the buildings would be 
ready this year and the Innovation Exchange by the close of 2009.  

 
Mr Christy then suggested that the Panel may wish to visit the Innovation Park. 
 
Action: Karen Amsden/Julia Riches to find out if the Panel Members would be able to 
make a site visit to Enviro21 Innovation Park 
 
The Link Road for Hastings had been approved which would release a significant level of land 
and will increase the number of innovation parks. Mr Christy suggested that B&H should 
collaborate with Eastbourne and Hastings. There should be coastal collaboration, not 
competition. Once the first three environmental business units were occupied, Sea Space 
would look at the second stage of the development. 
 
The recently established Environment Advisory Group had produced a list of approximately 
140 businesses in East Sussex (50 of them in B&H). The Hub had recently held an event, 
attended by over 100 people, and Mr Christy had been surprised by how lacking in knowledge 
businesses were about the different benefits of sustainable energy. 
 
David Porter – wanted to highlight the lack of skills for the installation of systems. 
 
He was told that this issue had been raised in other panel meetings. 
 
Cllr Randall – thank you for reinforcing the following messages: 

10



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AD-HOC PANEL 

13 MAY 2009 

 

• Green businesses need the same business advice and support as other businesses 

• The need for coastal collaboration 
 
Cllr Davis – what % of the businesses you support are environmental industries? 
 
Of the 70 businesses in our portfolio, 12 are environmental companies and the number is 
beginning to rise each month.  
 
Paula Murray – Do the 140 businesses, that you recently identified, exist as a network? 
 
The businesses have been asked if they want to sign up. They have been invited to sit on a 
smaller Advisory Group which has developed an Action Plan. The intention is to put all the 
companies on a database, to enable people to access information about them and to help with 
sourcing funding for new technology, R&D and University collaboration.  
 
Cllr Harmer-Strange – Is there a critical mass for a Hub? 
 
Approximately 40 businesses are the target, although our Hub has almost twice the amount.  
  
Paula Murray then told the Panel that B&H has the HUB100, but did not know how many of the 
companies were in the environmental sector. Out of the 9,000 companies in B&H, 1,200 are 
digital. 
 
Mr Christy believed that B&H was strong in a few areas of enterprise and quite constrained by 
its geography and the space available, therefore the digital sector should be used to enhance 
the environmental sector. 
    
Thurstan Crockett highlighted the need to look at how businesses, who would not consider 
themselves as environmental industries, contribute to the low carbon economy.  Examples 
included the digital and smart monitoring industries.   
 
14. e. Jim Watson, Director of the Sussex Energy Group at Sussex University 
 
Mr Watson explained that this was a social science Group which advised government and 
organisations on policy issues such as fuel poverty. The Centre was staffed by 18 people and 
12 PhD students. It was partly funded by the Economic and Social Research Council (ESRC) 
and industry. The Group formed part of the Tyndall Centre for Climate Change Research. The 
University of Sussex was historically strong at energy innovation.  
 
While a lot of technologies were being developed, policies were needed to construct markets. 
Such policies needed to include incentives and regulation, alongside the stimulation of 
customer demand.  Germany and Japan were world leaders because they had led the way in 
regulation.  
 
Although the Climate Change Act of 2008 had made the UK the first country to pass such 
legislation, governmental policy was quite vague on low carbon industrial strategy. There was 
significant discussion in local authorities regarding Low Carbon Zones, which was an 
opportunity that B&H could build on. Other opportunities for local authorities to act as pilots 
included: 

11



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AD-HOC PANEL 

13 MAY 2009 

 

• The recent announcement on electric vehicles Electric Vehicles - especially due to 
Elektromotive and Ricardo being locally based. 

• Community Energy Saving Programme (CESP) which would be area based and offer a 
‘whole house’ approach to energy efficiency.  

 
Both Woking and Kirklees have used innovative funding and projects to tackle this issue. Mr 
Watson felt that there was a role for local authorities as a key actor. The Government had an 
aversion to picking winners and having an industrial policy, due to the experience of Concorde. 
As a result, it was averse to backing specific environmental technologies. Research had shown 
that Sweden, Japan and Denmark had achieved success by setting some priorities and 
improving the technologies. This aversion was breaking down. Some in the Department of 
Energy and Climate Change had indicated that they were more comfortable about choosing 
sectors, such as offshore wind, but not a particular company. 
 
Mr Watson emphasised the importance of experimentation and local authorities could often 
play a key role in innovative technologies as well as schemes/business models such as car 
clubs. He believed that the UK had missed the boat on wind – and solar PV, despite the 
presence of installation companies such as Southern Solar, and was now trying to catch up 
with countries such as Germany. He did not expect nuclear power to bring significant industrial 
benefits to the UK.  
 
Brighton and Hove could lead by example, in relation to buildings or areas it had some 
leverage over. These demonstrations could be used to attract businesses in.  
 
Cllr Davis – Do you mean visible examples? 
 
Tangible programmes are needed, for example when Leicester installed solar technology in a 
few streets.  
 
Cllr Randall then observed that you needed champions, such as Allan Jones who was a key 
figure in Woking. Mr Watson added that he realised when he visited Woking, the Chief 
Executive was also on the side of Allan Jones. Creative financial arrangements were also 
needed to get around local authority and central government regulations. Therefore it was not 
surprising that there were not 20 Wokings.  
 
Cllr Randall – it is very important to encourage innovation, what specific things could BHCC 
do? 
 
It should try and be a pilot area for initiatives such as electrical cars – e.g. by bidding for 
funding under the recently announced government demonstration scheme.  
 
Thurstan Crockett then announced that BHCC was at the point of signing off a waiver to 
procure electrical car charging points for the City. They had also put in an expression of 
interest in the CESP pilot and are in discussion with a major company. He expressed his 
concern that the risk averse nature of BHCC has prevented it from supporting companies such 
as Elektromotive and ERVS. It would be better if there was a culture of experimentation in 
procurement. 
 

12



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AD-HOC PANEL 

13 MAY 2009 

Mr Watson believed that national government was also risk averse, but spending public money 
means that they have to be careful. However, if they support a portfolio of projects, the 
problems are not so great; if one failed that there was not such a great effect. The private 
sector seems to deal with this kind of risk more comfortably.  
 
David Porter asked the Panel if BHCC was applying for European Union (EU) funding to share 
this risk. He explained that you could insulate all the homes in Brighton and receive 50% 
funding from the EU. This would reduce the cost and the application process could identify 
risks.  
 
Action: Karen Amsden/Julia Riches to contact David Porter to obtain information about 
the EU funding that he referred to above. 
  
Cllr Harmer-Strange – how far is the UK behind countries such as Japan and the US? 
 
We are a long way behind. But in areas, such as manufacturing, it would be possible to catch 
up. It is good that central government is getting bolder about supporting this sector and taking 
risks. The oil and gas industries could be turned into a renewable energy sector. However 
many of these companies intend to move to another country, and continue to exploit oil and 
gas resources, rather than change to renewable energies.  
 
Cllr Harmer-Strange – Japan was not a pioneer in environmental industries, but then jumped in 
and stole the best ideas.  
 
Companies would only locate to a region, or country, if there is a stable market for their 
product.   
 
Mr Christy told the Panel that the new IGTs would target the top 250 growth businesses in 
each of the 8 areas across the South East. These 250 companies would be chosen on the 
basis of growth potential, turnover and innovation. It would not just be large organisations. 
There would be a budget of approximately £800,000 per year for running the programme, 
alongside key partner contributions.  East Sussex and Brighton IGT is focussing on key sectors 
such as environmental, digital technology, advanced engineering and health related sectors 
such as tele-health. This should attract funding from public sector organisations as these are 
key sector priority industries.  
 
Mr Watson informed the Panel that he had been talking to Graham Tubb of SEEDA about the 
government’s idea of regional clusters of power plants with carbon capture and storage.  
 
Jim Christy – what does the Panel think that BHCC should do to support environmental 
industries? 
 
Cllr Randall replied that it was the largest employer in the City and has a large budget, so 
should be an exemplar. The Council should be doing work such as looking at its carbon 
footprint. There was a need to be bold, as the prize is so important. He suggested that 
everyone should look at the ‘Story of Stuff’ on the web. He believed that Woking and Kirklees 
have shown what can be done. Another example was Helsinki, which has made every shop in 
a precinct disability accessible in order to show that it can be done. Mr Christy added that 
improvements to Broadband could be important in this field.      
 

13



 CULTURE, TOURISM & ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AD-HOC PANEL 

13 MAY 2009 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Cllr Davis drew the attention of the Panel to an article about Smart Energy Meters.  
 

 
The meeting concluded at 12.30pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

14



Agenda Item 19 
 

 
Biographies of witnesses attending on 10th June 2009 

 
 

Graham Tubb MBE, Head of Energy Policy with SEEDA, the Regional 
Development Agency for South East England.  
 
He has a background in sustainable development, environmental policy & 
strategic planning at regional, metropolitan and county level; while his career 
has been mainly in the public sector, it has included private sector and 
academic appointments (incl. University of Sussex) 
Graham is a member of the Executive Committee of Climate South East, and 
was Chair from 2002 until October 2008; he also chairs the national 
Sustainable Consumption and Production Network (SCPnet). He managed 
the national RDA policy lead on Energy on behalf of England’s nine Regional 
Development Agencies for 5 years (until Jan 2009) and in this role 
represented the RDAs on a number of Government bodies, mainly concerning 
energy and climate change. Graham was made an MBE in 2000 for services 
to regional governance and he is a Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts 
 
 

Christine D’Cruz 
Director of Business Development 
Residential and SME Markets 
EDF Energy 
 
Christine D’Cruz is Director of Business Development in the Residential and 
SME Markets for EDF Energy. Christine’s remit includes delivering EDF 
Energy’s Carbon Emission Reduction Target (CERT) of 19.3mtC and 
developing the Community Energy Saving Programme (CESP) due to 
commence later this year. Christine is also responsible for developing a 
portfolio of low carbon products and services. This includes electric vehicle 
charging, heat pumps and creating energy efficient homes. 
 
She is a professional marketer and business director having held director 
positions in marketing and commercial management at American Express, Elf 
Gas & Power, and Standard Chartered Bank. Christine was also a Senior 
Lecturer in Marketing at the University of Brighton and holds an MA in 
Marketing. 
 
Christine is Chair of The Basement Arts Production, a Trustee of The Martlets 
Hospice and a member of the Brighton & Hove Economic Partnership. She 
has previously been a Parent Governor of Cardinal Newman School. 
 
She lives in central Brighton and is married with two sons, Alexander and 
Dominic. 
 
 

15



Maria Antoniou, Development Manager, Friends Centre 
 
Maria Antoniou is Development Manager at Friends Centre, an independent 
adult education centre which delivers courses throughout Brighton and Hove. 
Each year, we provide a place for around 1,600 people from diverse 
backgrounds to learn together in a welcoming and supportive environment. 
Our work is designed to: 
 

• Help people achieve their aspirations and meet the challenges they 
face; 

• Stimulate community interest and civic involvement; 

• Promote tolerance, social justice and international understanding. 
 
Friends Centre is particularly known for its ability to engage with people who 
would not normally consider learning, including younger adults, people from 
minority ethnic communities, those with mental health needs or learning 
disabilities and homeless people.  
  
Friends Centre is moving to the landmark One Brighton building later this year 
and, from early 2010, will be launching a new programme of environmentally 
themed courses based on the One Planet Living principles (these 
ten principles are guiding the development of One Brighton). We are planning 
to introduce 'green jobs' training, particularly focusing on green building and 
retrofit skills. We are currently in discussion with BioRegional regarding joint 
design and delivery of these courses.  

 

Martin Grimshaw, Transition Brighton and Hove 
 
Martin is a member of The Institute of Environmental Management and 
Assessment (IEMA), Green Economics Institute and who has a PgDip in 
Environmental Assessment and Management, will attend as the co-ordinator 
of Transition Brighton & Hove's Livelihoods2020 group.  Livelihoods2020 
is part of the wider Transition Towns movement, an initiative born 4 years ago 
in Devon which has now exploded into an international phenomenon, now in 
30 countries and growing. There is a regular Transition Town storyline in 
Radio 4's The Archers and The Transition Handbook was the 5th most 
popular read among MPs during their summer recess last year. It is an 
attempt to mobilise communities to rise to the challenges posed by Climate 
Change and Peak Oil by planning their own energy descent and shifting to a 
low carbon future, less reliant on petrochemicals and less vulnerable to 
economic and other shocks, while building community, personal, economic 
and ecological resilience, promoting well-being and improving the ability of 
communities to meet their needs from local resources. 
 
Livelihoods2020 group is interested in supporting the local economy and 
issues related to work and money. Currently members give their time for free, 
while we are raising awareness and looking to develop projects and revenue 
streams. We have been organising public discussions, film screenings, 
disseminating information and literature, nurturing and incubating projects, 

16



organising training and workshops. We are interested in community sourced 
and directed investment, complementary currency and exchange systems, 
supporting new and existing sustainable businesses, harvesting visions of 
positive futures. Above all, we want to see a sustainable and vibrant 
community and economy. 
 

Vernice Halligan,Head of Employer Engagement & Michael Buckman, 
Curriculum Manager,  City College Brighton and Hove  
 
Vernice Halligan sits on the senior management team as Head of Employer 
Engagement at City College Brighton and Hove. This is a relatively new role 
and encompasses management of the college's International Business, 
Apprenticeships, Train to Gain, Employer Engagement, Marketing as well 
managing the curriculum areas of Electrical, Plumbing, Carpentry, 
Engineering and Catering and Hospitality. Vernice has been on the College's 
senior management team for 6 years and previously spent 15 years working 
in the telecoms industry primarily in marketing, communications and 
engineering roles.  
 
She is interested in learning about new developments in environmental 
technology and construction methods and any planned investments in 
Brighton and Hove so that the College is prepared and positioned to deliver 
the required training for the local workforce. 
 
Vernice will be accompanied by Michael Buckman, Curriculum Manager for 
Electrical, Plumbing, Carpentry, Engineering and Catering and Hospitality. 
Michael is an experienced teacher and manager of education design and 
delivery. 
 

17



Steve Ch Steve Charter 

SC2 Sustainability Consultancy, Director  

Steve Charter worked for Leicester Environment City (Environ) from 
1993-95 where he was responsible for establishing one of the first 
comprehensive agenda 21 strategies. Then between 1998 and 2003 
proposed, designed and helped implement the UK’s first local 
sustainable construction strategy, for South Somerset District 
Council and Somerset County Council (2000) and proposed and helped 
establish the Somerset Trust for Sustainable Development (est. 2000, 
now Ecos Trust) – the first Development Trust in the UK focused on 
sustainable construction, delivering education, training and 
information, and undertaking pioneering eco-housing developments, as 
STSD’s Planning and Research Director from 2000-2003). Since 2005 
as Director of SC2 Sustainability Consultancy Steve has led work on 
significant sustainable construction skills centre projects in the Kent 
Thames Gateway (SusCon) and in Yorkshire for Kirklees Council – both 
securing major capital funding. During the work with Kent Steve was 
also directly involved with developing the UK’s first SFI (Sustainable 
Futures Industries) sector development strategy, working within a 
consultancy team led by Era Ltd.  

Relevant work managed and delivered by Steve includes: 

2008-current – Kirklees Council - Detailed vision, Outline Business 
Plan and stakeholder engagement for Yorkshire Centre for 
Sustainable Buildings and Yorkshire Sustainable Buildings 
Champions programme, with Reasons To Be Cheerful. Kirklees have 
also asked them to develop a proposal for a 2 year training, 
competence and capacity building covering all aspects of sustainable 
buildings, both new build and existing buildings, including all key 
professional and staff groups. 

2005-08 – Kent County Council – SusCon - concept development, 
project advancement and training lead for a major new sustainable 
construction centre in the Kent Thames Gateway, to be opened 
2010 with £4mn public investment now secured. Involving needs 
analysis and recommendations for optimal skills programme, covering 
training for all technical, trade and professional areas involved in 
sustainable buildings, as well as specifying the key physical 
components of the training centre. 

 

 
 

BA (Hons) Economics & 

Geography 

 

MA Environmental Planning 

(RTPI Approved) – including 

course prize for Excellence 

in Examinations 

 

Diploma in Applied 

Permaculture Design 

 

 

Expertise in: 

Local and Regional 

Sustainability Strategies  

Sustainable Buildings Skills 

Centres & Regional Skills 

Programmes 

Sustainable Communities 

Strategies 

Sustainability & 

Regeneration Strategy 

Sustainable Futures 

Industries (SFI) Sector 

Development Strategy 

Design & Specification of 

Pioneering Sustainability 

Projects 

Education for Sustainability 

Social Enterprise for 

Sustainable Development  

 

Major Clients: 

Kirklees Council 

Kent County Council 

South Somerset Partnership 

(District & County Councils) 

 

18



  Agenda Item 20 

EnviroBusiness ETS Market Growth Forecasts Mar 2009 for South East 
 
Data 
 

 Current year Forcast Forcast Forcast Forcast Forcast 

 2007/8 2008/9 2009/10 2010/11 2011/ 
2012 

2012/201
3 

Air Pollution 2.62 1.93 2.00 2.08 2.16 2.24 

Environmental Consultancy 4.16 3.12 3.23 3.36 3.49 3.63 

Environmental Monitoring 4.17 3.08 3.20 3.32 3.45 3.57 

Marine Pollution Control 4.85 3.55 3.69 3.87 4.02 4.17 

Noise & Vibration Control 4.38 3.44 3.56 3.68 3.85 4.01 

Contaminated Land 2.97 2.37 2.47 2.57 2.68 2.79 

Waste Management 2.90 2.26 2.38 2.46 2.56 2.68 

Water and Waste Water Treatment 1.91 1.53 1.59 1.65 1.72 1.78 

Recovery and Recycling 3.57 3.24 3.40 3.61 3.84 4.09 

Hydro 6.43 2.55 2.68 2.79 2.91 3.02 

Wave & Tidal 6.36 4.95 5.15 5.36 5.56 5.82 

Biomass 5.84 4.55 4.77 4.99 5.19 5.44 

Wind 7.39 6.94 7.27 7.63 7.97 8.31 

Geothermal 5.86 4.47 4.69 4.91 5.14 5.40 

Renewable Consulting 3.25 2.93 3.03 3.15 3.23 3.30 

Photovoltaic 7.66 5.49 5.70 5.92 6.18 6.43 

Alternative Fuel Vehicle 4.81 3.23 3.35 3.47 3.59 3.72 

Alternative Fuels 5.00 4.07 4.24 4.42 4.66 4.93 

Additional Energy Sources 4.71 3.60 3.71 3.87 4.01 4.14 

Carbon Capture & Storage 4.18 3.19 3.32 3.42 3.56 3.68 

Carbon Finance 6.35 6.00 6.18 6.37 6.69 7.24 

Energy Management 3.95 3.26 3.40 3.53 3.66 3.80 

Building Technologies 5.14 4.12 4.30 4.47 4.68 4.87 

Total for all ETS sub-sectors 5.01 4.05 4.25 4.45 4.68 4.93 

 
Analysis 
Market forecasts for the UK and South East show gradual short term decline for the current year from 
August through until March 2009. The UK forecast out turn for the ETS sector in 2008/9 is down from 
6% (Aug) to 4% (Mar). The same level of decline is true for the South East. 
 
The UK and South East forecast for 2009/ 10 is still positive at @4.5% and this is well ahead of the 
forecast ETS growth for most major economies. 
 
Most of the impact of recession on ETS forecasts (as mentioned above) can be traced to the much 
lower growth estimates for 2009 onwards and specifically in Renewable Energy and Low Carbon. We 
should not pay much attention to those figures at this time but they are included so that we can 
monitor the forecasting changes as they occur.  
 
ETS is the only sector in the South East that we have studied recently to show such positive results. 
In other cases where August growth forecasts for 2008/9 were 5-6%, by Feb or Mar 2009 they have 
declined to 1-2%. We are as yet unclear whether this means that ETS is more recession- proof than 
some other sectors, or whether it is just slower to react to recession. Initial data suggests (but no 
more than suggests) that short term decline will be much shallower than for other sectors.  
 
Conclusions 

• ETS is forecast to weather the economic storm better than most other sectors 

• ETS Growth forecasts for the UK and South East are still very positive 

• Confidence in the longer term prospects for ETS growth will improve as the full effect and duration 
of recession are better understood.   

19



  Agenda Item 20 

Definition of Environmental Technologies and Services (ETS) Sub Sectors  

Market Segments Description of Market Segment 

Air Pollution Manufacture and supply of air emissions cleaning equipment 

Environmental Consultancy and Related 
Services 

Consulting including EIA, Management systems, ecology. Also other 

supporting activities. 

Environmental Monitoring, Instrumentation 
and Analysis 

Equipment to measure air and water emissions, water and soil testing 

services etc 

Marine Pollution Control Oil spill remediation equipment, consulting and services for this and 

other types of marine pollution 

Noise & Vibration control Monitoring and noise reduction equipment 

Contaminated Land Reclamation & 
Remediation 

Treatment of contaminated soils and land from industrial and nuclear 

pollution 

Waste Management Operation and development of MBT, composting, landfill and waste to 

energy plant 

Water Supply and Waste water Treatment Supply of water and sewerage services, as well as manufacture of 

equipment, consulting and other support services 

Recovery and Recycling Collection of waste, manufacture of sorting and processing equipment, 

recycling of different streams of waste 

Energy Management Manufacture and installation of a range of energy saving equipment for 

buildings and industrial uses 

Hydro Development and equipment for hydroelectric power schemes 

Wave & Tidal Development and equipment for wave and tidal power schemes 

Biomass Development and equipment for biomass power plant (but not fuels) 

Wind Development and equipment for both large and small wind power 

plant 

Geothermal Development and equipment for geothermal power generation and 

geothermal heating systems for buildings 

Photovoltaic Companies involved in the development of hydorelectric power 

schemes 

Renewables Consulting Consulting related to renewable energy schemes.  

Alternative Fuel Vehicle Building of alternative vehicles and fuels for vehicles 

Alternative fuels Alternative fuels for non vehicle applications (batteries) 

Building Technologies Development and manufacture of low energy building components - 

windows, doors, insulation, control systems 

Additional Energy sources Development and manufacture of alternative energy systems such as 

fuel cells, flywheels and compressed air schemes, combined heat and 

power 

Carbon Capture and Storage Development and equipment for carbon capture and storage schemes 

Carbon Finance Financial products and services in carbon markets, including funds, 

carbon trading, reporting. Also other supporting activities. 

  

20


	Agenda
	16 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS
	17 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
	19 EVIDENCE FROM WITNESSES
	20 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

